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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
(6:28 p.m)

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Good eveni ng, | adi es and
gentlenen. This is a public hearing of the Zoni ng Conm ssi on
for the District of Colunbia.

My nane is Anthony Hood. |'mjoined this evening
by Vice Chair MIller, Commssioners Shapiro, My, and
Turnbull. W are also joined by the Ofice of Zoning staff,
Ms. Sharon Schel lin, and al so M. Paul Young, who is handling
all of our stream ng and vi deo equi pnent; O fice of Attorney
General, M. Max Tondro and M. Jake Ritting.

| amgoing to ask M. Tondro if he can introduce
our newest attorney.

MR TONDRO Yes. |It's ny pleasure to introduce
Dani el Bassett, who is joining us. This is his first day on
t he j ob.

CHAI RVAN  HOCQD: Hs first day. Ckay.

Congratul ati ons, M. Bassett. W're glad to have you aboard,

and | believe today will be real easy for you. But | tel
everybody, don't get used to it. But glad to have you
aboard.

Al so, t he Ofice of Pl anni ng staff,

Ms. Steingasser and M. Lawson; and District Departnent of
Transportation, M. Rogers.

Notice of this hearing was published in the D.C
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Regi ster, and copies of that announcenent are available in
the bin near the door. Because this hearing is being
recorded by a court reporter, and is also webcast live, we
ask you to refrain fromany disruptive noises or actions in
the hearing room including the display of any signs or
obj ect s.

The hearing will be conducted in accordance with
provi sions of 11-Z DCVMR Chapter 4 as follows: prelimnary
matters, the applicant's case, report of the Ofice of
Pl anni ng and t he Departnent of Transportation, the report of
ot her governnent agencies, report of the ANC, testinony of
organi zations and individuals -- each have five to three
m nutes, respectively -- and we will hear in order fromthose
I n support, opposition, and undecl ar ed.

After testinony of those in support, we wll hear
from the parties, but we don't have any in this case,
opposi tion, and then proposed and then individual testinony.

That's nmy normal script. | probably could have
ski pped that.

Then, rebuttal and cl osing by the applicant.

Wi | e the conmi ssion reserves the right to change
the time limts for presentations if necessary, it intends
to adhere to the tine limts as strictly as possible and
notes that no tine shall be ceded.

| don't think | need to go over the housekeepi ng,
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but I will just ask that we turn off all el ectronic devices.
Agai n, when you present your testinony, turn on and speak
into the mcrophone, first stating your nane and hone
addr ess. When you are finished speaking, turn off your
m crophone at that tinme so we won't get any feedback.

The staff will be avail abl e t hr oughout the heari ng
to di scuss procedural questions.

And before | go to -- rise to take the oath,
before | forget, because sonetinmes we get into the neat of
the case, | want to wi sh everyone a Happy Thanksgi vi ng, and
have a safe and sound holiday with your famly and be safe
and enj oy yoursel ves.

Okay. Wuld all individuals wishing to testify
pl ease rise to take the oath?

Ms. Schellin, would you please adm nister the
oat h?

(Wtnesses sworn.)

CHAI RVAN  HOCD: Ckay. At this time, the
Comm ssion wll consider any prelimnary matters. Does the
staff have any prelimnary matters?

MS. SCHELLI N: There's three proffered expert
W t nesses -- Frank Andre, previously acceptedin architecture
fromHCM WMatt Renaul d from Mahan Rykiel from-- he is being
proffered in | andscape architecture. The Comm ssi on has not

accepted him before, at least | did not find him on our
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expert list. And Robert Schi esel. O course, he is a
regul ar here, has previously been accepted fromGorove/ Sl ade.

So just ask that the Conm ssion would accept the
two previously accepted.

And al so, Dani el Sol omon, he 1s another
transportati on engi neer who will be avail abl e for questi ons,
but he is not being proffered as an expert. So there is just
one expert for the Comm ssion to | ook at, at Exhibit 14B.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: That's M. Renauld, right?

MS. SCHELLI N Yes.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Okay. So Comm ssioners, as M.
Schel lin has al ready nentioned, we al ready have everyone el se
as expert status. So we will continue that unless | hear an
obj ecti on.

So let's look at M. Renauld, and he is being
proffered as a |andscape -- no. Is it |andscape
architecture? Okay. And that's Exhibit 14B

COW SSI ONER MAY:  No obj ecti on.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO No obj ecti on.

CHAI RMVAN  HOCQD: Ckay. Any objections or any

questi ons?

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: |' m good.
CHAI RVAN HOOD: All right. Thank you. | really
depend on the architect. | depend on everybody, but | really

| ook at ny architects. Ckay.
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8
MS. SCHELLI N: One other thing, | know that on

Friday M. Lewis filed a notion in order to respond to the
OP and DDOT report. However, | don't know -- did the plans
actually revise the application? | don't think they were,
so | don't think the notion was necessary. So even though
the notion is there, I wll just mark it that it was not
necessary because the notion is only necessary if the
application is being revised | ess than 20 days prior to the
heari ng.

So that notion is --

CHAI RVAN HOCD: Okay. | was unaware -- | thought
| may have al ready approved that, but --

M5. SCHELLIN:  No.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: | didn't. Ckay.

M5. SCHELLIN: | did not send it to you.

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: So that answers that question.
Any ot her questions or conments?

kay. |Is there anyone here who i s in opposition
to this case? Al right.

So, M. Uz, what we want you to dois to hit the
hi ghl i ghts, and especially the i ssues that you have answered
which were concerns of Ofice of Planning and DDOI, and
anything outstanding in your presentation. That woul d
probably help us nove it along a little faster.

MR UTZ: Kkay.
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CHAI RVAN HOOD: Thank you. You may begin.

MR UTZ: Thank you. Thank you, Conm ssioners.
We are really excited to be here tonight. This has been the
culmnation of quite a bit of work and quite a bit of tine.

My nane is Jeff UWz. |I'mwth Goulston & Storrs,
the land use counsel for the applicant. I will skip
everybody at the table in the interest of noving along ny
pi ece.

But just globally, thisis a second stage approval
for the building at 1325 to 1329 5th Street, Northeast. It
has approximtely 300 units, wth 24 of those units as
af fordabl e and commercial, retail, PDR nmaker, on the first
fl oor.

We're here with the support of ANC 5D, and we are
not aware of any opponents to the case.

A couple of major themes | just wanted to touch
on generally to kind of set the stage. This application
sinplifies the first stage approval in that it reduces the
flexibility that was requested as part of that first stage.
It also enhances the benefits and anenities that were
approved as part of the first stage.

And what we can tal k about, if you wish, is that
many of those benefits and anenities have actually either
been conpl eted or they are underway right now. And then you

can see on the slide here right now there are sone new and
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enhanced public benefits that exist as well.

The application doesn't seek to nodify the first
stage application, so it really is an exercise in
sinplification. Wth that, | will turn it over quickly to
Eddi e Meder to say a qui ck word about the applicant and nove
It al ong.

MR. MEDER: Good eveni ng, Conmm ssioners. M nane
I s Eddi e Meder with -- |I'ma devel opnent director with Gabl es
Resi denti al .

Gables, as a firm builds, owns, and operates
apartnent buildings throughout the country. In addition to
the D.C. netro, this includes South Florida, Atl anta, Boston,
Houst on, Dall as, Austin, and Denver.

Local ly, we have owned and nmanaged properties in

the D.C. -- in D.C. since 2003, including properties in Munt
Vernon Triangle, Dupont Crcle, Takoma, and up until | ast
year Woodl ey Park. In addition, we have recently conpl eted

several projects in Northern Virginia and Rockville.

O note, we are |long-termowners of property, and
we try to build strong | ocal partnerships in the conmunities
I n which we build and own.

W are excited to enter the Union Market
comunity. This will be the third tinme partnering with EDENS
on a project, and we are |ooking forward to conti nui ng that

partnership and building on the success of this vibrant
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nei ghbor hood.

As Jeff nentioned, we presented our project at the
| ocal ANC 5D a nunber of tines, including for a unaninous
vote back in June of 2019. W also presented at the |ocal
single-nmenber district and also received very positive
f eedback. Both groups were eager for our project to start.

Support letters for both the ANC and SMD are part
of the record.

And with that, | wll hand it over to Frank to
conti nue our presentation.

MR. ANDRE: Thank you, Eddi e.

Again, ny nanme is Frank Andre, and I'mthe | ead
architect/designer on the project wwth Hord Coplan Macht.

"' mgoing to abbreviate ny presentation, but try
to hit the highlights of the design thinking behind the
project. Just to begin, a quick word about the District and
t he vision that EDENS has brought to the redevel opnent of the
District. O course, it's historically a very vibrant,
bust|ing whol esal e market district, and it has been for many
decades.

More recently, EDENS has devel oped a vision for
redeveloping it and developed planning strategies and
Sstreetscape guidelines that very cleverly preserve the
exi sting character and weave i n new el enents, upscale retail,

Class A office space, entertai nnent events, and other uses
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that |ive al ongside and beside the existing uses and fabric
of the neighborhood, giving it a very rich and diverse
character that is unique in the D.C. narket.

Il  wll just point out a couple of the
architectural features of the neighborhood that | think are
worth nentioning as they play into the design. First of all,
the nercantile buildings that are the nost preval ent part of
the architectural fabric of the District, you can see in the
upper -- sone of the upper right inmages, light brick masonry
kind of utility buildings that have a one-story expression
on the street, a setback second story, and these have a very
distinct feature, a -- | ong continuous canopi es that protect
the old truck bays that service the market.

And then the setback second story nore recently
has been -- have been occupied by roof terraces, adding to
the active uses on the street.

And then of course the central genstone of the
place is the market itself, white painted red brick, two-
story, which is -- again, has a host of diverse preexisting
and new tenants |iving side by side.

Junping to the massing, the site, as you saw, it's
a long site, about twice as long as it is wde, wth the
narrow ends facing 5th and 6th. The south el evation faces
the open space between existing Union Mrket and the new

proj ect.
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The massing really is two maj or conponents. The
primary one is the masonry mass, which is a nod to the
exi sting masonry architectureinthe District. The brick was
selected to have a kind of -- a historic varied | ook, has
punched openings wth wvertical proportion that are
rem ni scent of the existing buildings.

The second major elenent is the |ighter vol une,
which is clad and netal, which harkens to some of the
transportation el enments, the sheds and dock doors that al so
live wthin and around the nmasonry fabric of the
nei ghbor hood.

And then the transparency is highlighted in the
third diagram and that's an inportant aspect of connecti ng
the uses of the building to the District, especially 5th and
6th Street, and of course to the south at the plaza and the
mar ket beyond.

And this first rendering is an overview of the
nost active two el evations, 5th and the plaza to the south,
showi ng howthe articulationis applied to that nmassing. You
can see the masonry touches the ground on all sides and
franmes the retail and the residential uses as they -- and
extends the one-story scale of the nei ghborhood.

The second story, you see a setback as kind of a
gap between t he second vol une and the primary masonry vol une,

basically a nod to the active roof terraces that exi st across
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5th Street and continuing that scale.

Here is an elevational rendering of 5th Street
showing alittle bit nore detail of those sane rel ati onshi ps.
You can see the retail to the right. It's nost of that
western el evation, very transparent, with the nmasonry frane
and t he conti nuous | ong bal cony, which you see has greenspace
on top.

Agai n, extendi ng that scal e of the nei ghborhood,
on top of that you see that's the residential anenity setback
with an active terrace addressing 5th Street. And then that
anenity glazing then turns down, neets the ground, and you
can see within that I'mgoing to talk alittle bit about the
desi gn, sonme of the unique features of the |obby design for
the residential entry, nost notably the nezzanine. You can
seeit's -- there's a nezzanine inserted into the tall retail
space.

This is a nore experiential rendering. | included
-- | think it's a good one to talk about sone of the
evolution of the material choices that we have nmade in
response to sone of the OP comments.

There are really two parts of the evol utions that
| want to highlight. One is to create greater contrast
between the |ight-colored brick and the dark netal to create
a bol der expression and to sort of differentiate the two in

a nore striking way.
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And the third is the accent material, which you
see is basically applied to all of the horizontal surfaces
at over hangs, undersides of bays, canopies, bal conies, that
kind of thing. And that's what | call the fifth el evation.
It is not evident in the orthogonal elevations, but it's a
very major contributing factor to the way the building is
perceived in the nei ghborhood.

And then a simlar viewfrom6th Street, just to
point out that the sanme attitude is applied, the sane
detailing. The only major differences here are that there
Is no | obby on this side. At the north edge of the site we
have the vehicular entry, which gives access to the
internalized loading as well as the three Ilevels of
under ground parking. And the setback second |level there is
also anenity -- or it is also terrace space, but it is
residential terraces as opposed to anenity.

And then, finally, | included this rendering
because it's a little different in that it's a rendering of
the building inserted into an actual photograph of the
District as a rem nder of kind of the grit and rugged quality
of the nei ghborhood, both materially and programmatically.

And then a quick word about the materials. I
bel i eve there are sone physical sanples up behind you, but
it's a very sinple pallet, purposefully sinple. There is a

single brick, which is a light-colored brick.
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It's a little different from sone of the other
newer buil dings that reference the brownish or |ight-col ored
tan brick in the neighborhood. This one is a white brick,
which has a feeling of being whitewashed, which references
the market itself.

And then the netal that clads the netal volune
above is a brushed, dark gray netal to kind of soften the
quality of it. It's detailed, so that it has depth and
offset joints to nmake it feel a little nore rugged and
evocative of sonme of the industrial quality of the
nei ghbor hood.

And then the accent material you see in the upper
right is a rust-feel netal, which has a very saturated
quality to it and a very organic kind of texture to contrast
with the other two materials and really pop agai nst the nore
nmut ed pal | et.

And then I won't spend a lot of time on these
el evations except to point out that, you know, we are
adhering to all of the setbacks. W're not asking for any
relief on penthouse setbacks. You see the red |ines at the
t op.

Sout hern elevation, | think | failed to mention
the bay el enent that exists about a third of the way in from
the west on the southern elevation, help break it up, and

al so kind of marks the beginning of the deeper part of the
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pl aza space that hosts events, and so forth.

And the north is a lot line condition. |I'd just
poi nt out here that, you know, we're using all of the reqgul ar
primary materials on this space, and we have designed in
detail s that, again, suggest that the building has a history,
abandoned lot |ine windows, and then there is a shallow
courtyard there that 1is, again, designed to be very
consistent with the level of detailing materiality on the
ot her two, east and west, facades.

Just quickly, the plans -- I'll start with this
one. You can see the predom nant col or of the building there
I S pink. That's the retail space, and that is, you know,
intentional to have all of that active use of three sides.

The other two secondary uses, the residential
| obby, we have created a very small footprint for that | obby.
It also, notably, is designed as a public space, so the
el evator for the retail parkers actually cones up and peopl e
can flow through the | obby into the retail space. And I'I|
talk a little bit nore about the nmezzanine quality of that
or mezzani ne aspect of that, but you can see the public stair
that | eads up to the nezzani ne there.

I n the upper right you see the single curb cut and
entrance, the internalized service there, which is two 30-
foot berths and one 24-foot trash conpactor berth, as well

as a 250 square foot dock. And then, continuing past that,
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aranp dowmn to the retail parking, and then eventually at the
bottom the residential parking.

Moving up, this -- | included this just to
illustrate that there is that nezzanine that overl ooks the
retail space. Again, this is slotted into the 20-foot-high
first floor. It has an open space in the mddle so that as
people walk into the space, which again is conceived as a
public space, you can see all the way up through t he openi ngs
to the second level, and even, you know, occupy -- there
woul d be -- this wll be furnished as kind of a | ounge space,
a public | ounge space.

And then noving up to the second | evel, you can
see howthe skin is set back, east and west. The residenti al
anenity is the lighter color, and you can see the units there
occupying the eastern majority of the site. You can see the
shal l ow courtyard to the north and the setback to the south.

And then | will go quickly through these plans.

These are --

CHAI RMVAN  HOCD: Let nme just interrupt for a
nmonent .

MR ANDRE: Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: | want you all to take your tine
and do your presentation. Don't worry about -- we don't have

anything to do until Thursday. So just take your tine and

go through your presentation. Ckay?
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MR ANDRE: Al right. Sorry. | was trying to

get through it all in a short anmount of tine, so apol ogize
I f | was rushing.

Just point out a few of the features here. The
shall ow courtyard to the north, you can see the lot |ine
walls there as well, and then also point out that we took
advant age of the bay definitionto articul ate the ends of the
metal volune you see on the left and right on 5th and 6th,
the projections that conformto the all owed bays on those two
streets. And they allow that volune to break the plane of
the property line and sort of express itself on those two
ends.

These plans are largely the sane, a few-- you see
the bay feature here at the southern edge pops in at this
| evel and continues all the way up. This is -- goes up all
the way to Level 10 where there is sone -- the bay begins to
drop off, and then the top, 11th floor, the | ast residenti al
| evel , where there are sone m nor setbacks having to do with
t he pent house expression and the bal coni es.

And then | wll talk briefly about the plan at the
roof. The major uses of the roof is thereis -- you can see
dedi cat ed nechani cal space, primarily to the north edge, all
set back according to the code. |In the center, you can see
the encl osed anenity space. The elevators give on to kind

of the | obby, and then the sort of yellow sh-tan residenti al
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anenity spaces occupy -- are, you know, nostly on the eastern
side. And then the white is outdoor terrace space, and the
green of course is green roof.

Now we'll talk a little bit nore about the
| andscape design for that in a nonent.

And then, finally, the roof of the penthouse, you
can see a |l ot nore green roof occupyi ng that uppernost |evel,
and also the purple -- |1'd point out that is the -- that is
a well essentially where there is a lower ceiling below, and
that hosts the solar array, about 2,000 square feet of solar
panels in that zone there.

And then here is a rendering of howthat all cones
together. | failed to nention when we were | ooking at the
el evations that we conformto the three levels as required
by the penthouse definition.

The trellis elenent, which term nates the bay you
see on the left side, and that is an independent trellis.
It's not engaging the architecture of the penthouse
otherwse. And with that, Matt, do you want to take over?

MR, RENAULD: Sure. Thank you. Matt Renauld with
Mahan Ryki el Associ ates.

Just to dovetail onto Frank's initial conments for
the rooftop, we have designed it as a series of roons that
maxi m ze the views to the south and the southwest. You'l

see that the main overlook terrace has the architectura
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element. That's the focal point, in concert with the pool,
which is -- we are hoping to be an infinity edge kind of on
t he edge of the rooftop.

We are also going to be incorporating sone gray
change. On kind of the western side there, you see sone of
the terracing, about 18 i nches just to, again, accentuate the
Vi ews, create sone visual interest.

On the right side of the plan, we have a terrace
anenity space. This is going to be the outdoor anenity
kitchen, kind of grill area, for the anenity space on the
I nside. And then we have a series of quieter terraces as we
wor k our way around the buil ding.

Go to the next slide, Frank.

This is the plan, again, kind of highlighting the
activity. You can see the pocket of roons that are neant to
ki nd of blend the activity and experiences together, but they
are still separate and unique. W really wanted to | ayer the
experiences for the guests and residents comng to t he space.

We can go ahead to the next one, Frank.

And then, here again, you get a sense of that
space, the pool space, and then the upper level anenity
terrace that may be used for ganes, | ounge, maybe afire pit,
maybe outdoor novies, that type of activity. And then you
can see the overl ook terrace up beyond that accentuates the

bay el enment that Frank had nentioned before that works its

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

22

way down towards the plaza.

So, again, we are really trying to create that
connectivity with the rooftop and the plaza space bel ow.

Go to the next one.

And then this is just a view of the quieter side
of the building with the fitness area, the potential dog run
kind of to the right, the idea of a norning roomfor kind of
this garden space that, again, the idea is to allow the
rooftop to bl end i ndoors and outdoors together. Gables does
a great job of doing that on many of their projects. We
really want to bring that experience to the rooftop.

Go to the next.

And then just real briefly, I just wanted to hit
on sone of the highlights of the ground plane design. W
primarily have three zones. W have the 5th Street
streetscape, the plaza space, and 6th Street.

Go to the next one, Frank.

The mai n focus, as Frank had mentioned before, is
the plaza space. This is really designed to have ultinmate
flexibility for uses. So we really want to all ow the market
-- existing market space to be able to expand out northward.
W also want the Union Market North building to expand
sout hward, so they kind of converge in the m ddle.

The ideais that all of the furniture and el enents

I n the space woul d be noveable, which is going to allow for
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various programm ng and uses, which |I wll nention in a
norent .

All  of these pieces are neant to be playful
el ements. You can see kind of the pictures bel ow of col orful
seating, you know, different types of benches and el enents
that people can experience and sit upon, also different
el ements of shade that can be novabl e.

We do anticipate sone sun in here, but allow ng
those shaded elenents to be able to be noved around
periodically will actually allow the space to adapt.

And then, if you go to the next one, Frank, the
I dea of the flexibility is that during the day and in the
norning the purple area allows the servicing for the Union
Mar ket buil ding to be nmai ntained. Vehicles and trucks woul d
be passing through in kind of the reddi sh pink zone, and then
the pedestrian circulation would nostly be oriented towards
the Union Market North building in the norning.

And then, if you go to the next one, Frank, the
Idea is that then at certain tines of the day the plaza gets
cl osed down, the trucks cone out, and the plaza expands and
allows for daily uses, the restaurants, and allow ng for
those | arger events, the EDENS prograns, throughout the year
as wel | .

Go to the next one, Frank.

Just a coupl e of quick shots. As Frank had shown

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

24

before, just, again, show ng the idea of the ground pl ane.
Very sinple, simlar to sonme of the current installations
that are happening on 4th Street. Very sinple ground pl ane,
really letting the architecture speak, unifying the ground
wth sinple materials and spaces.

Again, you can get a sense for, you know, the
fl exi bl e furnishings.

You can go to the next one, Frank. That's okay.

One thing to notice here is the green wall
elements that wll be kind of animating the retail facade
al ong the plaza space. That waps around onto 5th Street as
well as kind of a way to anchor the building, build in an
el ement of green. There could be potential opportunities for
overhead lighting and other elenents that wll further
animte this space.

Go to the next slide.

On 6th Street, we have our -- nore of a D.C
standard streetscape with the three street trees. This is
kind of the quieter side with the | oadi ng dock. W have our
bi ke parking and our transition back to the existing curb
lines. W are al so extending sone of the existing utilities
on 6th Street out in this area to accommodate those.

And then the next one just, again, is the
rendering showing that streetscape Frank had nentioned

before, the | oadi ng dock and parking entry to the right side.
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Go to the next.

On the 5th Street side, this is where we are
trying to blur the lines. W were involved with the Union
Mar ket design guidelines, and they are fairly prescriptive
wth the tenant zone, the circulation zone, and the flex
zone.

Here, Frank's teamhad i ncorporated aninteresting
el ement of the angle of |obby entrance. W wanted to use
that as inspiration to kind of blur those lines a bit, so you
can see sone of the angled forns of the planters, the paving,
and sone of the streetscape furniture, again, to kind of blur
the lines of what those zones may be and to create sone
energy and build upon sone of the atnosphere that is
happening in front of Union Market itself.

And then, as part of that, wth Union Market
desi gn guidelines, using the -- kind of allow ng that space
to be nore used for -- in the tenant zone or for the flex
zone. And placing that focal point tree at the | obby space,
It really accentuated that on the northern side.

Go to the next.

And then just a couple renderings of that again,
kind of |ooking back at the |obby, very open streetscape.
Agai n, you can see the green wall elenents and the engagi ng
-- kind of the engaging atnosphere of the architecture

speaking to the street, and vice versa.
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Go to the next one.

And then, just very quickly, kind of keeping the
materials consistent of what is existing and what has been
installed currently in Union Market, scored concrete, warni ng
that up with potential paver accents, and then really
enbel | i shing wth, you know, a series of, you know, boll ards
and planters and site furnishings that really kind of bring
that character and kind of the fun elenments and simlar
things that are in the front of the Union Market building
currently.

MR, SCHI ESEL: Good eveni ng, Conm ssioners. M
name i s Robert Schiesel. |'ma transportation engi neer with
G ove Sl ade Associ at es.

In the essence of tine, | think what I'd like to
do is go straight to our slide nunber 10 and just talk nostly
about our responses to the DDOT report.

Qur CTRis on the record, and if you -- if any of
t he Comm ssi oners has questions about this material, we could
cone back to it. So just, in particular, just summarizing
t he DDOT condi tions and our responses, DDOT requested -- one
of their conditions is that we inplenent the transportation
managenent plan as it was presented in our report. And that
Is agreed to.

They did ask for one additional TDM and this ki nd

of goes back to the Stage 1 PUD. Stage 1 PUD for the south
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building had a TDM el enent to propose that the applicant
woul d provi de annual Bi keshare nenberships to residents. It
kind of left the north building a little unopen.

DDOT pointed to this in their staff report, and
the applicant is proposing that, upon request, it would
provi de nmenberships simlar for the north building with a cap
of $14,000 on that. That is the simlar -- that is the sane
anount as what was in the zoning order for the south
bui | di ng.

DDOT staff report did not have a cap on that, so
the applicant is agreeing, but just effectively doubling the
cap for the entire PUD

| would nmention that the letter that M. Uz
submtted on Friday has these responses in nore detail than
what is on the screen with nore | anguage expl ai ni ng sone of
t he reasoni ng and when/ what woul d be proposed.

DDOT" s condi ti on about el ectrical vehicl e charging
stations is agreed to.

Next page?

The | anguage about the knockout panels is agreed
to. DDOT did ask for condition that the applicant would
provide a letter of acknow edgenent from the adjacent
property ower. As you wll see in M. Uz's letter, the
applicant agrees to nake reasonable efforts. They can't

guarantee they can get a letter froma third party, but they
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are agreeing very much in principle wwth DDOT and will do --
make efforts to obtain such a letter

That covers DDOI's conditions. DDOT  al so
mentioned a couple of things for continuing coordination
| guess we just want to have on the record our response here.
This is nostly things that will be handled in public space.
DDOT i s requesting coordi nati on on, as the market evol ves and
the sequencing of this and adjacent devel opnents and the
| andscape, obviously that is agreed to and | ooked forward t o,
havi ng everything cone in place and being very conpatible
w th each ot her.

DDOT requested that the south building |oading
access during construction of the plaza and the north
bui | di ng be nmai ntai ned. They didn't want trucks on the
street. Applicant agrees in general wth that.

They only want to have a -- as we go through
public space, all discussions about exceptions for when work
Is on the plaza itself. But when work is being done on the
bui I di ng and just general construction, they are going to do
their best efforts to nake sure that plaza is avail abl e and
trucks will be able to access it.

And DDOT al so brought up a building projection
Issue. This is goneintoin M. Uz's letter, but basically
the applicant agrees with what DDOI is suggesting for

conti nued coordination. And, specifically, he is requesting
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sone flexibility to renmove or nodify the specific
enbel i shnent cited -- DDOT in their report.

And with that, like | said, ny report is on the
record. And if there are questions, |'d be happy to answer
t hem

MR UTZ: Please. Geat. Thanks, Rob

Just a few quick words. | want to bat cleanup on
sone of the open itens that you nentioned when we first
started, Chairman Hood, with the -- yes, right there. No,
first slide of the appendi x, please. Thank you.

So the open itens fromthe OP report. W didn't
touch on these during the prior part of the presentation, but
the project increases the inclusionary zoning benefit and
anenity from what it was before -- eight percent --
80 percent, an eight percent set-aside of the residential
conponent and 80 percent AM to nine percent, with 30 percent
of that set aside for 50 percent MFI/AM units. And then the
70 percent remaining at 80 percent MI/AM.

There is loading flexibility that is required for
the north building. That was nentioned as part of the first
stage approval, although since there wasn't a site plan
specifically approved at the tine, we anticipated needing it
and do indeed need it. So that the loading flexibility is
required, the loading relief for all dinension spaces in the

north building is required.
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The nmaker space request from the Ofice of
Pl anni ng, the benefit and anenity that has been added to the
project is that five percent of the comrercial on the first
floor is set aside for PDR and nmaker uses. Fifty percent of
the comercial space on the first floor is designed to the
I ndustrial, the PDR nmaker specs. And it's essentially the
sane suite of conponents that was approved under Case 17-14.

The materials, we did cover that. There is a
materi al s board submtted, and there is al so actual nmaterial s
fl oati ng around behind the dais.

The residential |obby location, we didn't really
detail that as part of this presentation. But this -- the
team feels strongly that 5th Street is the right place for
this particular residential | obby.

It'"s inthe |location that was originally proposed
as part of the first stage approval. There is a desire to
bring, you know, the varied uses that residential can bring
I mredi ately adjacent to retail, comrercial, PDR uses al ong
5th Street. So we feel it actually activates 5th Street in
a way that it would not do if it was on 6th Street.

There are additional elenents that are added t hat
-- additional reasons that are described. And it is Exhibit
25 of the record, so | won't bel abor that point any |onger.

And then the first source agreenent, there was a

gquestion about the status of that. It actually has been

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

31

executed with the Departnent of Enploynent Services, so it
exists for the project, and then any GCs, partners, other
subcontractors that exceed the threshold will have to sign
first source agreenent as well over the course of the project
constructi on.

So that, | believe, addresses all of the open
itens fromthe OP report. Rob touched on the openitens from
the DDOT report. W are happy to answer any ot her questi ons,
but that brings our presentation a close.

Thank you.

CHAI RVAN  HOQD: Ckay. Thank you all for vyour
presentation. Let's see if we have any questions or conments
fromthe Comm ssion.

Comm ssi oner My, our normnal order.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  |''m happy to cede to sonebody
el se, but, you know, nobody is junping at it, so --

So do you know what's going to happen on the | ot
to the north and when that m ght happen? Because it's a big
bl ank facade on the north side. Anybody know? Everybody is
| ooki ng at each other. There has got to be sonebody who
knows sonet hi ng.

MR, CHOWFLA: Yeah. Hi. 1'mSohael Chowfla. |'m
a developer with EDENS. The lot to the north is owned by
Gal | audet University, and it's currently the subject of an

approved Stage 1 PUD, in partnership with JBG And that's
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all that | currently know.

We have agreed --

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Before you keep going, not that
we don't trust you, would you stand, so we can swear you in?

MR CHOWLA: kay.

MS. SCHELLIN: Pl ease raise your right hand.

(Wher eupon, the witness was sworn.)

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  All right. That's just the nornal
-- not that we don't believe you, but anyway, go ahead. W
even have priests and everybody el se. W have to swear you
in. That's our process. Ckay?

MR CHOWFLA: Ckay.  Yeah. So the building is
subj ect of an approved Stage 1 PUD, and it's purported to be
residenti al . And | think in terns of timng, our
understanding is that it's still quite far out. But that's
all that | know.

We have agreed to provi de a knockout panel in this
garage for this subject PUD to connect at a later date to
t hat garage.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Okay. Thank you.

So do you have any -- | don't renenber the Stage
1 approval. | have no idea what the massing of the buil ding
Is. Does it -- isit going to match up with your courtyard,

so that it sort of doubles the size of the courtyard, or --

nobody has any idea on that one?
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MR UTZ: W' ve |looked at it, yes.

MR ANDRE: | nean, it's -- it's not a 100 percent
match, but nost of the courtyard wll remain open. The
eastern party wall will nostly be adjacent to the adjoining
party wall, and then the open -- their court, in the PUD,
extends out to 5th Street.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Oh, okay.

MR ANDRE: So it will nostly be open. There's
a slight offset, but --

COW SSI ONER MAY: How far off of the west side

of the --
MR, ANDRE: The distance fromthe lot to their --
COMM SSI ONER MAY:  Yeah. The lot linetotheir --
MR ANDRE: | believe it's simlar to our court,
if I -- 1 don't remenber the exact dinension, but it's a

simlar dinension, which is about --

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Thirty-pl us.

MR, ANDRE: -- 30-plus feet, sonething |ike that.
" mjust going fromnenory, but --

COW SSI ONER MAY: So 30 feet away fromyour bl ank
wall there is going to be --

MR ANDRE: Oh, no.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  -- a wall.

MR ANDRE: Oh, yes. On the east side.

COW SSI ONER MAY: On the east side. Does it give
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you any desire to think about whether that -- you m ght take
a chance on a few w ndows there. | know that they would be,
you know, lot |ine wndows that would -- could be -- you

know, if the PUD changes, they could go away.

MR. ANDRE: W have discussed it. The way the
units work, they don't add a | ot of value, but for the units
t hensel ves, we have talked about whether it mght be
advant ageous for the exterior. W have sort of conprom sed
by including sone I'lIl call them dummy abandoned w ndows.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yeah.

MR. ANDRE: They're obviously not actual w ndows.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: Yeah. And they are just
I ndented there, and they're the sanme white brick?

MR. ANDRE: Correct. But the intent for those --

for that surface is to -- and also wth, you know, graphics
and nural s that are consistent with kind of the -- sone ot her
art installations in the neighborhood. So it would be

painted directly over it, so it starts to have a |ayered
effect, but --

COW SSI ONER  MAY: So are those in the
presentati on sonewhere, the package sonmewhere?

MR, ANDRE: | think there's a note about it in the
subm ssion. | skipped over nentioning it in ny presentation
because | was trying to keep it short, but -- and they are

not represented graphically, no, because they're not desi gned
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yet.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Ckay. Yeabh. No, | woul dn't
expect they would be designed yet. But | get a little
nervous about murals when we don't have any idea what they
are because sone nurals are good and sone of themare not as
good. And so, you know, if we're review ng the design of the
rest of the building, | kind of want to review what the
design of the mural would be. And, again, it's hard to do.

| mean, | would be inclined to suggest that you
m ght | ook at sone different treatnents of those recessed
portions of the facade to see if sone subtle variation m ght
actually help it, particularly if it's likely to survive and
be a wall that sonebody is | ooking at out of their apartnent
fromthe building to the north.

And it's also -- | nean, if it's likely -- you
know, if you knew for certain that those lot line walls are
going to be covered up or hidden from view by other
construction, |I'd be |ess concerned about them But if
there's a prospect that when you're com ng down 5th Street
you wll be able to ook up to the left and see that bl ank
facade forever, | want it to | ook reasonably good.

So, | nmean, this is better than the average that
we get off when we get -- just get, you know, big blank EIFS
panels or sonething like that. But it would be nice to see

sonething a little bit better there if it's going to be
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around for a long tine.

So what are -- this is a common thene for ne.
What is your experience with very light-colored brick? |
mean, | understand thisis alittle bit different because of
the texture of it, andit's alittle bit nodel ed, and so on.

But, | nean, ny experience with white materials
on buildings is that you have to design themvery carefully
to be able to shed water and not just carry, you know, the
soot of pollution down the side of the building and stain it
or color it at least and to be washed on a regul ar basis.

And the way it's designed is just, you know, it's
basically like a frame. And if there's water hitting the
sills there and just draining off, it is going to be pulling
that down, and so you're going to wind up with a bl ackened
section of it. And |I'm wondering what your experience has
been and whether you've been able to detail it in sonme way
so that the water sheds differently or so that it doesn't
cause that kind of an effect.

MR. ANDRE: Well, we haven't gotten into the
detailing, but it is, you know, sonething that is -- |
under stand your concern. | think the nodeled nature of the
brick and -- you know, is part of what will canoufl age any
stai ni ng that happens.

But | would al so note that if you wal k t hrough t he

nei ghbor hood, | nean, that -- that's kind of an identity or
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giving feature of the neighborhood. Sonme of those |ight-
colored brick buildings have gotten quite dark over the
years. | nean, that is part of it.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: Yeah. And | think nore
uniformy so. | nean, | think that it -- you know, it just
woul d be a shane to have a new building. | nean, this is a
new building, and it's clearly going to | ook new for a | ong
period of tinme, particularly conpared to the rest of the
bui | dings that are there.

And I'mjust concerned that it is going to -- you
know, after two or three years, it is just going to | ook |ike
adirty building. And the fact that you have, you know, this
-- it's not quite white, it's sort of off-white, helps a
little bit. But the texture of it also is a texture that is
going to hold on to the dirt and the soot nore than others
woul d.

So | think you're just going to have to think
carefully about that and how it is -- again, how it is
detailed and try to explain it a little bit to us to know
that it is going to actually | ook good, because we don't want
to approve a building and then five years |ater be | ooking
at it saying, "Gee, that |ooks terrible." And that happens
sonetinmes with white surface buil di ngs.

And maybe that's a treatnent of the -- you know,

where you -- below the sills. Maybe there is, again, a
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recess in aslightly different color or sonething |ike that,

so that it looks intentional that there is -- if it gets a
little dirty. | nmean, sone buildings | ook better when they
start to get dirty, right? | nean, up to a point, right?

But it accentuates the features of the building as opposed
to detracting fromit.

MR, ANDRE: One aspect of the detailing that |
think will help a bit with that is that the nortar and the
sills are intended to be flush, so there is not a |ot of
projections and things that will catch. And that's -- to be
honest, that's really to create a sense of solidity and
utility, you know, that is in keeping with the nei ghbor hood.

But | think that will also help, you know, at
| east deter sone of that collection of soot and staining that
woul d happen on the nore variated surface.

COW SSI ONER NAY: Well, | do think you shoul d
look at it alittle bit and --

MR. ANDRE: Ckay.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: -- you know, again, if you
think -- if you have experience having used this particular
brick or simlar brick in color in this kind of an
application, and 10 years later it |ooks great, you know,
"Il be satisfied wwth that, but --

MR. ANDRE: There is a building in the D.C. area

that utilizes that brick, which | thinkit's only a fewyears
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old, but | can take a closer look at it and see howit's --

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yeah. |[It's worth | ooking at.
You know, that may be enough.

Thi s roof section, the small roof sections where
you're showng the setbacks, it indicates in a note a
potential |ocation for photovoltaic panels on top of the
trellis.

MR. ANDRE: We renoved that note for | think the
| ast package. If not, it was -- it shoul d have been renoved.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Okay.

MR. ANDRE: The photovoltaic panels only exist on
the wupper roof, and there is a second location on the
st epdown roof.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Ckay. And |' mnot aski ng where
they are. |1'masking about the trellis in particul ar because
it's --

MR. ANDRE: The trellis is intended to be open.

COW SSI ONER MAY: And it will always be open?
You're not --

MR. ANDRE: Correct.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  It's not a potential --

MR. ANDRE: The only thing we are contenpl ating
Is to have sone lights, sone string lights or sone |ighting.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  kay.

MR, ANDRE: But otherw se, yes.
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COW SSI ONER MAY:  All right. Then that draw ng

shoul d be nodified to take that out.

MR. ANDRE: Ckay.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Al t hough it m ght have been
Interesting to see what you could do with PUD panels up
there. But | wouldn't have put them at the typical angle.
| woul d have tried to do sonething that made it |look like it
was part of the trellis.

Let's see. So how nmuch does $14,000 worth of
Bi keshare buy? | mean, how many nenbershi ps for how | ong?
Because they were asking for three years of anybody who wants
them pretty much.

MR SCHI ESEL: Yeah. At the current rate, w t hout
assum ng any sort of discount or bulk discount, it's around
165 yearly nenberships. So the --

COW SSI ONER MAY:  For one year.

MR, SCHI ESEL: Yes. So the inplenentation would
be, you know, that the coordinator hands out the -- one of
the other CTM inprovenents would be welcone packets for
residents wth this kind of information. And then with --
I ncluded in there woul d be, you know, you could request this
benefit. And it would -- not counting if there's discounts,
it would be 165 or so.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Okay. So |'ve forgotten how

many units there are going to be.
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VR. MEDER: [t's 300.

COW SSI ONER MAY: 300. So basically half the
people noving in wll one tinme get a benefit?

MR SCH ESEL: If they request for it. Usually,
when you have a cap, you switch from an everybody-
automatically-gets-it system to that the information is
provi ded and then sonebody can request it.

COWMWM SSI ONER MAY:  Yes.

MR SCHI ESEL: So, yes, half the people who first
nove in ask for it; they can get it.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  But DDOT was aski ng for whoever
wants it for up to three years with no cap.

MR SCHI ESEL: Yes. W feel that having this --
the cap, no cap, was kind of -- one of the reasons we don't
agree with that is because -- and this is touched on in the
DDOT report. The Stage 2, the anount of traffic generated
by the Stage 2, is -- was nmuch | ess than what was gener at ed
in the traffic report for the Stage 1.

So within the envel ope of what was i ncluded in the
Stage 1, traffic analysis, thisis comng in at a nuch | ower
nunber. So we just -- the applicant feels that -- |like a cap
-- having a no expense cap on this is -- you know, they
prefer to have a set nunber, so that it reflects the
reduction in traffic since the Stage 1.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  So you have ot her buildings in
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Washi ngton. Have you done Bi keshare nenberships in any of
t hose ot hers?

MR. MEDER: | actually don't know that for sure.
" m not sure.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yeah. Okay. |'mgoing to be
I nterested to know whether, you know, 165 is even going to
get you one year's worth of rentals. And, | nean, isn't it
going to take you nore than a year to lease it up anyway?
| nmean, they are talking about | think it was three years,
right? |s what DDOT was suggesting?

MR SCH ESEL: Well, therewould benotinelimt.
The limt would now be the cap.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Cot it.

MR SCH ESEL: So if only like 10 percent of the
new residents request it, even past one year or two years,
It would go, you know, whoever requested it until it's --

COW SSI ONER MAY:  For as long as it would go.

MR SCHI ESEL: Yes.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yeah. And what was nagi ¢ about
14, 000?

MR,  SCHI ESEL: It was the nunber that was
commtted to for the south building. So it's effectively a
doubling of the commtnent for the entire PUD

COW SSI ONER MAY:  kay.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Can | -- how nuch is a
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Bi keshare cost? What's the price tag on that?

MR SCHI ESEL: A yearly nenbership, just to the
public, is $85.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. Sorry, M. My.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  It's all right. It just seens
like it's sort of nickel and dine, but -- so the -- let's
tal k about the projection. And you are requesting design
flexibility to deal with the projection, so what does that
mean? Wat would -- the projection they are tal king about
Is a large awning that waps the corner; is that right? O
what is it; sonething else?

MR UTZ: It is sonething else.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  What is it?

MR UTZ: It is the boxing el enent. Frank, can
you show the -- | call it boxing as the |and use attorney.
It's the elenent that fronts on 5th Street, and it franes the
w ndows and the projections on 5th.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Oh, oh, all the way around the
whol e franme of the buil ding.

MR UTZ: Yeah.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  So it nakes -- so those are
bays. And it's -- and you're wapping the whole thing in the
bays, and so that whole thing is in public space.

MR UTZ: So the franme itself -- so the OP report

touches on this, and we believe that the reference is to the
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gray framng elenent there with the kind of orange --

COW SSI ONER  MAY: Yeah. | see what it's --
yeabh.

MR UTZ: So the bays thensel ves conply, and the
concept is that, yeah, the gray el enent needs --

COW SSI ONER MAY: Yeah. This is clever. So, and
you're asking for flexibility to change that. So what woul d
the alternative design be?

MR UTZ: So we're asking for flexibility if we
don't get the nodification approved through the construction
code nodification process. However, the Ofice of Planning

report indicates that they would be supportive of that

request .

COW SSI ONER MAY: | understand. But if you don't
get it -- you're asking for design flexibility to make a
change. So what will that change | ook |ike?

MR UTZ: If it's significant, it would need
nodi fication. It would need --

COW SSI ONER  MVAY: Well, not if we granted

flexibility Iike you have requested.

MR UTZ: If it -- | think it's a matter of
degree. You know, it's -- sonething, you know, that devi ates
slightly fromthis would potentially not need relief. But

| think sonething that --

COW SSI ONER MAY:  So, | nean, ny -- | think you
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have two choi ces here. One is that you show us what it woul d

|l ook like if you had to fix it to conply with current code,

or you have to cone back for a nodification. | don't think
that there is any flexibility to be granted here. | nean,
that's ny -- ny take on it because this is just too

substantial an elenent in the design of the building.

I'"'m interested in hearing nore about the
I ncl usi onary zoning discussion, but | think I'm going to
| eave that to others to raise the issues, and I'Ill just
listen attentively.

Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Thank you.

Comm ssi oner Shapiro?

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO, Thank you, M. Chair.
First, just a question about when you were | ooking at the PV
array on the roof, did you explore at all how it m ght be
I ntegrated into the green roof, so that you could find nore
sol ar?

MR ANDRE: | failed to nentionthat it is sitting
atop green roof. So the area is both green roof, and the
solar array is nounted above it.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO So t hen why -- why not nore
-- a larger solar array, since you have nore green roof?

MR. ANDRE: The area where the sol ar array exi sts,

we have lowered the ceiling in sone secondary spaces. And
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togrowit, thereis a fewnore step down -- there is a step
down just to the south of it where we could put sone
additional solar array. But if we were to extend it beyond
that, then we're having to drop the ceilings, and it inpacts
the space significantly.

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RC: So you just don't have
enough height to put --

MR ANDRE: |It's a height issue.

COW SSI ONER SHAPIRO:  -- the solar array above
the green roof, that are above the anenity roons that you are
tal ki ng about.

MR. ANDRE: That's correct.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO CGkay. Al right. And I'm
curious to see you maxim ze the anount of solar array. So
I f you know right nowthat there are sone additional options,
you know, just -- | wouldn't even conceive of holding this
up to go for that, but just go for it.

The other questionis related to the plaza and the

m x of uses on the plaza, the varied uses. And | didn't
quite wunderstand how you nanage that and how you limt
access. | nean, physically how you limt access at certain

times, and is that programred in advance, and do you have
nei ghbors that you have to negotiate that wth, and so just
a mnute to help ne understand that a |ittle bit better.

MR CHOWFLA: Hi . So just a little bit of
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hi st ory. When the consolidated PUD in Stage 1 was approved
in 2015, | think our collective thinking regarding the plaza
was to create a flexible community gathering space that coul d
accommpdate a variety of uses. And so we wanted to design
the space as part of the Stage 2 to accommpbdate community-
focused type activities, such as events, art, nusic,
gat hering, just hangi ng out.

And t hen, obviously, we also wanted the space to
respond to the practical | oading considerations for the south
bui I ding, for the narket.

So the current design of the plaza we feel
achieves these two goals, and is designed flexibly to
accommodat e both of these scenarios. And we will control it
viatine, soin the norning and in the eveni ng, when we | oad
the market, we w |l have | oading access through the plaza.
And there's diagrans -- | don't knowif you can go to those.

CHAI RMVAN  HOQD: So that's a question | had as
wel | . So, for nme, as you talk through it, what would help
me -- if not, | can wait and ask the question in ny tine --
but since you're on that, if you could show the renderings
as you talk through them and how all of that is going to --
wal k us through how that is going to work, the timng, at
10:00 we're going to change it over this way, this is how
this is going to be done. Just walk ne through that whole

scenario, so | can visualize it, if you don't m nd.
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COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO For ny two cents, you know,

sone of that is going to be determ ned by the uses that are
there, and | would want you to have enough flexibility to --
you know, to have it work for whatever range of tenants you
have on either side.

But tothe Chair's point, it's not clear to ne who
even manages this and, you know, where the -- so, yeah.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: If you can't answer it al together,
then I will just ask it |ater on.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO And al so, physically, how
are you going to limt access? | nean, you know, you're
going to put up a police no crossing barrier? You're going
to put -- you know, is there a bollard that pops up? O, you
know, what are you going to do?

MR CHOWLA: Sure. So I'll answer the physical
part because that's where | was headed next. So you can see
here on this diagram how the plaza would be used during
| oadi ng hours, and so this would be in the norning. There
Is existing loading for the dock 5 and market buil di ng.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO To the Chair's point, do
you have set hours for the |oading, for the norning | oading
hours? O do you just -- you know it will be |ate norning
sonetinme when it switches, and it depends on the tenants?

MR CHOWNFLA: Yeah. W don't have set tines, but

It would -- our intentionis to sort of do the loading in the
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norning, and then in the afternoon we have contenpl ated
havi ng sone sort of barrier or gate that would physically
bl ock cars fromentering and turn the plaza into a m xed use
event, nulti-use gathering space, which would be activated
by the retail on the north.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO: One of ny concerns about

that is, you know, w thout forethought -- if that's a word - -
around that, you know, | -- you have an opportunity to design
sonething attractive that acconplishes -- that serves the

purpose, and I wouldn't want it to be, you know, a piece of
wood, you know.

You know, so sone ki nd of design el enent that goes
into this | think would be quite interesting, whether it's
operated manually or automatically or, you know, | don't
know. But | just -- | would |ike to get sone nore of your
sort of creative thoughts around that.

MR CHOWLA: kay.

COW SSI ONER MAY: | think that's a good point.
| nmean, even if it's not |ike a super creative gate design,
just a gate design, because it's a substantial elenent in the
public space there.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Exactly. Especially from
the pedestrian experience. | nean, this is sonething that
they are really going to see and feel every day.

Anot her question on those lines -- and, M. Chair,
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| think you had a followup question on that, too -- if |
| ook at --
CHAI RVAN HOOD:  |'Il follow back up, but --
COW SSI ONER MAY: -- if I look at L8, and |I'm
| ooking at -- this is during -- | assune this is after

| oadi ng hours, and | see a truck off in the corner in one of
the docks. And that's okay, right? But does that nean that
you expect that there will be sonme truck traffic, even after
| oadi ng hours are done? O is that truck just sort of
| andl ocked there for the day? O is that a m stake?

MR CHOWFLA: | think that's just an oversight.
My apol ogi es.

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO Because you could have
shown the truck actually running over people and then we'd
have even nore concerns, but I'mwth you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Al l right. Conmm ssioner Turnbul | ?

Ch, you --

COW SSI ONER SHAPIRO:  No. This is for OP. [|I'm
fine.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ckay.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO I'"'mfine, M. Chair.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Conmmi ssi oner Turnbul | ?

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL.: Thank you for your
presentation tonight. | have a question on -- you're going

for LEED silver?
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VMR. MEDER: Correct.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  You have 55 out of 110.
s there any reason why you can't go to gold?

MR. MEDER: We are exploring pursuing gold, and
It is potentially very achievable. So that is sonething we
are actively | ooking at.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Let ne help you on one
item If you go to -- if you pull up -- let me make sure
get the right drawing here -- A7. Yeah, there you go. One
of nmy favorite shots.

This i s supposed to be a sun-shady trellis. And
| sawit as sun-shading articulated. |'mlike -- but | don't
-- it looks pretty clear up there. |s that sone kind of just
| i ke shaded glass, or is it any kind of glass? But it |ooks
like I could get a suntan up there. It looks like I could
get a suntan underneath that trellis.

And you know what ? Those lights are on in a night
picture, they're on in a day picture, and | don't think
that's a LEED scorecard-plus. Most of the buildings we have

seen with penthouses that are trying to enhance the outdoor

space go wth the LEED guidelines. It's usually
downl i ghti ng.

And | understand, you know, |'ve got a backyard,
|"ve got the little lights around ny deck, | go out there
with a cigar and I' mhaving a gl ass of Madeira. |'mrel axed.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

52

You know, what's what we want to do, right?

But, I'msorry, this mght be overkill. | think
the little electric neter is going around and around and
around up here with these. | think you mght want to rethink
-- nothingto -- | don't mnd hanging |lights, okay? |'mnot
agai nst that.

But this just stands out |ike, we don't want to
show of f how good lighting -- |lighting designers we are. W
want to show GE that we -- -- you know, we |ike them

| mean, think about it. [|'mjust asking you, |
just think it's a little bit of an overkill, and you're
trying to nmake a statenent on a sun-shaded trellis. But it's
nore |like you can get a tan up there with that.

Think about it. [I'mnot trying to nake a j oke up
here, but it just seens alittle bit like a stretch that this
Is not well thought out. | nean, | don't mnd the trellis,
the idea of a trellis up there on that space. Public --

people in the building want to get up and enjoy the roof.

That's fine. It's a wonderful idea.

But | think, please, take another | ook at this,
and try to either tone down that lighting -- | nean, it just
| ooks like it's -- people are going to | ook at your buil di ng

and they're going to say, oh, look at that trellis up there,
and they're going to want to go up there.

Anyways, just one thought. | nmean, that's --
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especially if you want to go for LEED gold, that's not
hel pi ng you.

The other thing, on that elenent that you're
| ooking for flexibility on, the surround around the -- the
sort of copper/bronze-like material, netal panels that are
around there, it alnost [ooks in sone of those renderings
that it's alsolit. Is therelighting on that also? Is that
lighting on all day long? Only at night. But the people in
those units are going to look out at this copper-lit
surround?

MR ANDRE: [It's softly lit, and it's not --

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Turn your mc on.

MR ANDRE: I'msorry. It's softly lit, soit's
--and it's just at the sides of the units, so --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: And how | ong does that
stay on, all night?

MR.  ANDRE: W haven't determ ned that, but it
probably woul d not be on all night.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: |'mjust saying, | nean,
i f | have just bought -- I"'min this building, and | go out

to that front window, and all of a sudden |I'm going to | ook

out and all | see is this beautiful golden surround and
peopl e are going to probably be | ooking up there going -- it
just seens -- now, it's a stationary light. It's not noving,
right?
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MR. ANDRE: No. Correct.

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: Ckay. W' ve had
experiences -- there is buildings that have been doi ng that,
and it's just -- it's |like announcing, hey, |ook up here.

All right. | nean, that's --

MR, ANDRE: Your point is well taken.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Well, |'mjust thinking,
and it |ooks also that underneath the expansion, the bay
w ndows, the copper, you are also lighting the underneath of
t he copper underneath those bays.

MR, ANDRE: Only the bay on the south, wunless
you're -- there is sone lighting that's on the soffit that
Is lighting up the external anenity terrace.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Well, I'mlooking at the
-- at the projection of the balconies or the bays --

MR. ANDRE: Here? O down --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Down. Over -- no, down
further. The little --

MR ANDRE: Oh, here. Yes.

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: Yeah. Are they Ilit
under neat h?

MR. ANDRE: They are. Yes.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: What does that do for you?

MR, ANDRE: Well, it's really just adding sone

energy to that plaza, that retail plaza, between the two
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bui | di ngs.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. So if | am going
to -- and, again, |'ve got to look up at a |lighted copper
ceiling. | don't know It just --

MR, ANDRE: In part, it was a response to the
request fromOP to enhance the accent material. So we added

sone lighting, so that it would --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: On, you're enhancing it
all right. You're enhancing it.

MR ANDRE: But it's not a central design feature.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Si gnage. | appreciate
your |ittle couple of pages here on signage, but it really
doesn't help ne. | would It ke to see -- | nean, it's nice
that you | ocate where the signage is going to go. But then
you show sone pictures as to exanples of it, but sone of
t hese exanpl es show bl ade signs that have got to be |ike 30,
40 feet high, and there are sone other ones that have got to
be four feet in wdth.

| would |ike to see a di nensi oned si gnage di agram
I n ot her words, show ne where you're -- where the signage is,
but al so show the signage as to what you think it really --
the proposed signage, what it could be -- nmaxi nrum m n,
maxi mum as to what those signage could be. That's what |
would i ke to see.

The other thing is that on your flexibility,
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Exhi bit 14-12E, Exhibit 20A -- 20A -- Item C needs to be

revised. You' ve got -- you're saying, "To vary the final

selection of the materials wthin the color ranges and

material types as proposed.” You need to change that "and
to "of the."

You can't change -- you're not goi ng to change t he
materials. You're going to change the color ranges of the
materials proposed. So that needs to be changed.

But | think the Ofice of Attorney Ceneral can
help you with that |anguage because we've been nodifying
t hat .

The other thing is, on an item nunber G "to
revise the design of the public space surrounding the
property and the exterior design of the project, to the
extent necessary to obtain proposals,"” blah, blah, blah
bl ah, bl ah, are you just -- it sounds |like in one way you're
tal ki ng about public space. But then you have interjected
this thing about "and the exterior design of the project.”

It's confusing. Now it sounds |ike, well, we
m ght want to change the shape of -- the look of the
bui I ding, which is, again, getting back into what nunber C
tal ks about. | think you need to work with the Ofice of
Attorney CGeneral and strai ghten out that | anguage, and either
revise that exterior design, get that out of there and get

back to basically if you're talking about utilities and
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grounds, | think that |anguage should be changed to best --
toreally tell what you really nean.

| think, M. Chair, that will be it for ne for
NOW.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: Ckay. Thank you.

Vice Chair?

VICE CHAIR M LLER.  Thank you, M. Chairnman, and
t hank you for your presentation.

M. Meder, you nentioned --

MR. MEDER  Meder, yes.

VICECHAIR MLLER -- you're with Gables, right?

MR. MEDER:  Correct.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: And you nenti oned Wodl ey Par k
Project. |Is that the devel opnent that was done with Oyster
School? O is it adifferent --

MR MEDER: That was a different property. And
we recently sold our Whodl ey Park asset | ast year.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. Okay. So | appreciate all the
conmmuni ty engagenent that you've done, and | -- the anount
of tinmes you've net wth ANC 5D and the single-nmenber
district Comm ssioner in 5D01. And you' ve garnered each of
their -- both the ANC and the SMD support.

| would echo Comm ssioner Turnbull's urging and
your own statenent that you are going to try to get to LEED

gold. You're just five points short.
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You have nmet with the Departnent of Energy and t he
Environnent, | assune, or have you net with them and they
have given you -- they usually are very forthcomng wth
suggesti ons of how you can get there, sone of which are nore
expensi ve than others, but -- and sonme of which are not.

MR,  MEDER: W nmet with them briefly at the
I nt eragency neeting a coupl e weeks ago.

VI CE CHAIR M LLER: And t hey had sone suggesti ons?

MR. MEDER  Not specifically.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. They didn't.

MR MEDER No. It was part of a | arger neeting.

VICE CHAIR M LLER:  Yeah.

MR,  MEDER: But they have offered their
assi st ance.

VICE CHAIR MLLER: So | would encourage you to
try to get there. And if sonething changes before we get to
final action on that, please let us know, because that
certainly would be nore of a public benefit.

The design | think is very -- is very attracti ve.
| like the netallic accent. | think it warns up the

buil ding. And | don't know about the electrified aspect that

Comm ssi oner Turnbull was tal king about, but | -- the color,
| like that, and | like the contrast in the colors and
between -- the design between the industrial |ook at the

nodern | ook. And all of the bays and bal conies are al ways
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a public anenity for the residents who are there.

So on the inclusionary zoni ng, affordabl e housing
conponent, | realize you've increased your proffer fromthe
first stage -- | think it was originally eight percent at --
all at 80 percent nedian famly incone, M, and now you're
at nine percent, and you've got 30 percent of that reserve
for 50 percent at nedian famly --

MR. MEDER  Yes.

VICECHAIR M LLER -- incone. |Is that 50 percent
medi an being triggered by the habitabl e penthouse space? O
I's your proffer above and beyond what is currently required
in the inclusionary zoning regulations? Not naybe what
applied at the first stage, but is that 50 percent being --

MR. MEDER  No.

VICE CHAIR MLLER Wuld it be triggered by the

current --

MR UTZ: No.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: -- the habitable space up
there? No.

MR UTZ: It woul d not because there are not units
in the penthouse. |It's just --

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Residential anenities?

MR UTZ: -- residential and rec space, Yyes,
correct.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: So |I realize you have a
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respectful disagreenent with the Ofice of Planning, and
we'll hear nore fromOfice of Planning shortly, where they
are saying that it's -- you should be -- is this an all-
rental buil ding?

MR UTZ: It is.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: So the current inclusionary
zoning rental requirenent is -- we | owered that to 60 percent
median famly income, because of a lot of public and
executives' testinony that -- and our own experience in
dealing with these devel opnents over the years, that the 80
percent MFl really just is not -- it's not benefitting --
It's not getting to affordable housing where it's needed in
the city.

It's that M-I level 1is based on the whole

metropolitan DW area, which includes the richest counties

In Anerica -- Fairfax and Montgonery and others. And it's
just -- so that MFI level at 80 percent, when it's using the
area -- area-wde nedian incone, it just -- it doesn't get
to it.

So, and | realize that seven of the -- so you've

got 24 -- approximately 24 units of |Z of the 300, and seven
of those 24 are at the -- | think at the 50 percent M
| evel . And four of those seven are two-bedroom units, so
that's all very commendabl e.

But | woul d encourage you to reexamne to see if
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you can | ower sone of those 17 units that are 80 percent I
to the 60 percent MFI level. Just -- the 80 just does not
neet the affordable housing need in this city in any
meani ngf ul way.

So, and | realize you also had that respectful
di sagreenent | guess on the PDR maker space. | think they
wanted a 20-year comm tnent, and you have five years. But
I think you nade sone good points about not wanting to have
vacant space, and there is a | ot of PDR naker space that has
been devel oped by EDENS and ot hers at Uni on Market.

And so | think those are -- and you are building
out to industrial |levels, as you said, for design purposes,
50 percent of that retail, ground floor space, so that it
could be PDR maker space if the market was there.

So | think you nade sone good points there. Do
you have any naker tenants identified or types of retail
tenants identified yet for that?

MR, CHOANFLA: We do not.

VICE CHAIR M LLER Is there nmaker space that is
enpty and vacant currently at Union Market that we have
required to be in other devel opnents?

MR CHOANFLA: | think right now at Union Market
the PUDs that contain that benefit have not been constructed
yet.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Not been constructed yet.
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Ckay.

| think that may be it for now, M. Chairnman.
Thank you very nuch.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay. Conmm ssioner Shapiro had
a follow up, and then I'll ask m ne.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you, M. Chair.

Yeah. Just to follow up on Vice Chair Mller's
questions around the affordability. | nean, | inagine the

only argunent you have is that it affects the financing or

the -- you know, the performance in sone way that just nakes
It nore difficult for the -- | don't know Are you self-
financing? Is it nore difficult for the project to get

financed? Are you afraid you're going to |ose an investor
I f you cut it down?

| nmean, | -- and, really, if the only issue is
noney, then, you know, it's helpful for us to hear it. |
don't even know what your IRR is. | don't know if -- you
know, what's the real inpact of sonething like this,
especi al ly when you see how nuch of a priority it is for the
-- for D.C. and the region.

It doesn't seeman unreasonabl e ask to reduce it,
unless it is just such a hit that it really affects the
viability of the project, which |I imagine it doesn't on a
building this size wwth the kind of rent rates you're going

to get.
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MR UTZ: | was going to say, so the project has

been | ooked at for a while nowwith the AM |evels that were
kind of expected by the |andowner. You know, the eight
percent and 80 percent was the way that it was bei ng val ued.

There is a hit -- Eddie can speak to it nore
closely than I, because it's sonething that we spent a | ot
of time tal king about and trying to figure out ways to nove
it forward and nove it -- you know, |arger set-aside at
deeper MFI rates. That has been the goal. It has been one
of the primary things we have been tal king about over the
course of this being an application.

So, you know, | don't knowif there are specifics
that we could get into now about what changi ng woul d do. |
don't think so, but | -- you know, each nove does have
dramatic effects on --

COW SSI ONER SHAPIRO: | nmean we don't typically
ask these questions. It's just -- it's so clear that the
only reason is that it just -- it hits the bottomline.

And given how nmuch of a priority it is, then it
woul d be hel pful for nme to hear how big a hit to the bottom
line and, you know, if it's about your financers, it's a
pretty reasonable story to tell that this is an absolute
priority for D.C. and the region, and there's, you know, a
story about it every day in the paper around how the renewed

commtnent to this by the whole region on the private -- on
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the public sector side, as well as the private sector side.

So, you know, a little bit nore information would
be hel pful, and I would really encourage you to, you know,
reconsider it and take the hit. But, please, if you have
addi ti onal specifics you can share w t hout reveal i ng too nuch
conpany secrets --

MR,  MEDER: W can't admt too nany conpany
secrets, but I wll say that the Stage 1 PUD was approved
back in 2015 under a very different set of rules and
priorities, of which, you know, our partner, EDENS, has made
many commtnents over the years and was reflected in the
agreenent that we joined forces together.

And it is asignificant hit, and nore so that the
area, it's extrenely conpetitive. And we don't know when we
start construction what we deliver into. On paper, it's
fine, but that does not reflect reality many years in
advance, when things actually go under understandi ng, when
you have a | ender, when you have financing partners.

And so we have been working very closely with OP,
you know, to find an equitable solution, at | east we believe
to be an equitable solution, but we will certainly take a
| ook at it.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Yeah. And, | nean, so, you
know, to really stir the pot, it sounds |ike there nmay be

sone space for renegotiation with EDENS. So it's not just
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your issue, right?

MR MEDER It's primarily a Gables issue.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO And | appreci at e you sayi ng
that, right?

MR. MEDER:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO | really do. But the
pressure is comng -- you know, we -- we want to provide
certainty, and D.C. wants to provide certainty, and we're in
a very unique situation in a very difficult tine. And it's
an absolute priority, again, region-w de.

And so it's -- you know, it's a pretty inportant
and significant ask for us. | don't take lightly what OP is
doing, and | think that they are pushing in the right way.

Thank you, M. Chair.

CHAI RVAN HOQOD: Thank you. I will concur with,
actually, everything |I have heard ny col | eagues say and the
format and fashion in which they have presented it. [ 1

take those concerns, too, as well as noving forward.

Have you all had any conversations with -- [I'm
sure EDENS has -- I'm just curious, have you had a
conversation with the Council Menber? | know you' ve tal ked

to the ANC, but what about the Council Menber in Ward 5?
MR. ANDRE: | have not personally spoken with him
CHAI RVAN HOOD:  So nobody has -- okay. All right.

You know, in your discussions with the Chair, ANC 5D, wth
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Chai rman Lee, what were those conversations |ike? Wat --
did they add any added val ue to what you were trying to do?
And what -- run ne through the typical conversation you had
with the ANC to garner their support? D d anybody here go
to the neeting?

MR UTZ: Oh, yeah

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ckay.

MR UTZ: W were all at the neeting.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  So ever ybody shoul d know sonet hi ng
t hat happened at the neeting, then. GCkay. So just walk ne
t hrough just sone of the discussions. D d they add anythi ng
that they wanted to see? Just tell ne -- tell nme what you
got out of that neeting.

MR CHOWFLA: So | think we got overwhel mng
support fromthe ANC for this project. The delivery of the
pl aza ahead, which was originally -- to rem nd you, the south
and the north building were flipped, so that was viewed as
a very positive part of this PUD, because it is open to the
publi c.

And then, of course, street-activating retail was
obviously very well-received as well by this ANC.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So the plaza was the big hit for
the nost part.

MR CHOWFLA: The plaza was viewed very

positively.
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CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ckay.

MR UTZ: And | think some other elenents that
were -- the delivery of the building itself, they are eager
to have this go forward. They were happy about it. They
wanted to see it happen fairly quickly. And then, also, the
famly sized units cane from a request originally fromthe
ANC.

So those were integrated into the distribution of
units and, you know, nmaxim zed as noted by the Conmm ssion.
The 1Z units are focused on that request purposely.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: Ckay. So | have to eventually,
when dock 5 -- nmy orientationis off with the dock 5 and this
site. During the Mayor's Arts Awards, they particularly did
sonet hing in which you have fashioned. That's why | caught
an interest inthis. And | really support what you all are
doi ng.

| just want to nmake sure, as Comm ssi oner Shapiro
was nentioning, that it works, because that was done that
night, and I said, "This is great."” But, now, did you all

get that idea fromthe Mayor's tean? O did you all cone up

with that?

|"m just curious, how did -- | cone here two,
three weeks Ilater. Now | see this -- sone of the sane
fashi on happeni ng here. Dd you all -- whose idea was it
first? |'mjust curious.
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MR, CHOANFLA: | nean, | can never take any credit

for anything | have ever done in ny life.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Did you all -- okay. But did you
know t hat the Mayor's office did this when they had the thing
at dock 57

MR CHOANFLA: | did not.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: okay. Al right. Well, anyway,
It works. But let's talk about it again, so | can understand
It. And | realize we kind of went through those di scussions
about the timng of this, but -- so at sone point intine --
just wal k me through it.

At sonme point in tine during the day, is this
every day it iIs going to <change over to this
pl aza/ di ni ng/ gat hering, et cetera? 1Is it going to -- it's
goi ng to change over every day just |like this, Monday through
Sunday.

MR, CHOWNFLA: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Roughly probably about the
sane tinme every day or, say, 2:00, 3:00? Because you're
m ssing the lunch hour. |'mjust saying, you know --

MR, CHOWFLA: It would be before. It would be in
t he nor ni ng.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: I n the norning.

MR, CHOWNFLA: Yes.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ckay. So the deliveries wll
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start early.

MR, CHOWLA: Correct.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: And all that was discussed with
the ANC, right?

MR, CHOWNFLA: Yes. Yeah

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Okay. all right. So let's just
remenber what Comm ssioner Shapiro -- the di scussion we had,
explaining to us how a ot of that is going to -- howit's
going to work, howit's going to evolve, what protections are
we going to put in place, because that's part of what we're
supposed to do is nake sure what we approve protects the
residents as well. W want to make sure we do that here, so
we're | ooking forward to seeing that.

| also wanted to concur wth Conm ssioner My
about the white brick. I know sone projects that | have
actually sat on on this Comm ssion and approved, and every
time | ride by there |I don't even tell nobody anynore that
| even had anything -- that | voted onit or anything because
I think his evolution of what he i s sayi ng about that turning
dirty is true.

Because one of the projects, | don't even think
It's eight years old that we approved. So if what you're
sayi ng about the nortar and everything, howit's going to --
if you can tell us how it's going to run off, and how it

won't set, and the soot won't be in the brick and it won't
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| ook bad after two years, then present that to us.

But, also, you nentioned a building that you all
al ready had that had that type of brick. Could you provide
sone pictures for the record?

MR, CHOWNFLA: This is not one of our buildings.
This was a building that has the brick that we're
cont enpl ati ng usi ng.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: Coul d you - -

MR, CHOWLA: But, yes, we can provide pictures.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Just don't give ne the address.
| don't want to know whose building it is.

MR, CHOWFLA:  Sure.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: But just -- if you can just
provide -- | don't want to put you all on the spot I|ike
you're comng in here and telling on sonebody el se, but | --
I f you can just provide sone of the -- sone shots of it, that
woul d be great.

And also, | would agree with ny col |l eagues about
the gold. As was nentioned, you're a few points away, SO
let's just cone back with gold. | nean, that's -- we can do
it. GCkay?

All right. That's all | have. Any other foll ow
ups up here?

I"'mreally excited about the conversion of the

pedestrian to the plaza and everything, and I think that's
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what the -- it's a catcher for ne, and I know it worked the
other night, and it worked well. So hopefully -- |I'"m sure
that's one of the things that the comunity is | ooking
forward to.

Al right. Anything else up here?

All right. ANC -- is anyone here from ANC 5D?
| don't see Chairman Lee.

kay. So let's goto the Ofice of Planning and
DDOT.

MR, LAWSON: Good norning, M. Chair and nenbers
of the Conm ssion. ["m Joel Lawson with the Ofice of
Pl anni ng.

OP is definitely supportive of this building.
We're excited by it proceeding forward. It has been a while.
We are supportive of its overall design. W do appreciate
sone of the comments nade by the Comm ssion nenbers tonight,
particularly ones regarding the I evel of flexibility and the
potential for maybe sone addi ti onal detailing along the north
wall. We think those are good comments and appreciate the
applicant agreeing to take a | ook at those.

W do also appreciate the applicant's response
that they provided to the record on our comments that were
In our last report. W haven't actually had nmuch tine to
review it.

In general, there were a nunber of conmments that
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we tal ked about. There were kind of two main ones that the
Comm ssion has also picked up on. The first one is, of
course, affordable housing. W alnost can't hel p oursel ves.
W have to advocate for nore affordable housing and for
deeper |l evels of affordabl e housing.

It does becone difficult, and | see the Conm ssi on
strugglingwthit as well, when we're dealing with a project
that's, you know, kind of extending over tine |like this one
has, one that was approved four or five years ago and i s now
com ng back, and the way we |ook at projects is just
different now than it was back then.

Now, we do, however, certainly acknow edge the
applicant's discussion about what was approved in the first
stage, and we thought that was -- that was certainly
I nteresting and conpel |l ing.

The second issue was the length of termfor the
maker space. W actually continue to believe that a | onger
term for the nmker space is appropriate in this case.
However, as | said, we really haven't had a lot of tine to
| ook in detail at the responses that the applicant provided.

So we'd be happy to spend sone additional tine
reviewi ng that subm ssion that was put into the record on
Friday, taking a look at it in a bit nore detail, conparing
it alittle bit nore to the first stage approval, and havi ng

addi ti onal discussions with the applicant, if necessary, and
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provi ding coments, nore detailed coomments to the record at
a later date.

Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Thank you, M. Lawson.

M. Rogers?

MR, ROGERS: Good evening, M. Chair, nenbers of
t he Conm ssion. Jonathan Rogers with the District Departnent
of Transportation.

DDOT appreci ates the cl ose coordi nation with the
applicant on this Stage 2 PUD. W have revi ewed Exhi bit 25,
the response to the DDOT and OP reports, which was submtted
on Friday. W did find that sonme of the -- there were sone
I nconpl ete elenents in terns of addressing each of DDOT' s
responses.

However, those were directly addressed i n Exhi bit
26, the presentation for this evening. DDOT is in agreenent
with the applicant, at |east in concept, on the responses to
the DDOT conditions with the follow ng notes and caveats.

W would like clarity on what it neans to nake
reasonabl e efforts to secure aletter of acknow edgenent from
t he adj acent property owner regardi ng t he knockout panel s and
potential for future shared access through the driveway.

W would also |ike to review | anguage regarding
the perm ssions proposed by the applicant regardi ng access

to the knockout panels and the driveway.
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DDOT appreci ates the di scussi on and points rai sed
by the Conmm ssion this evening, particularly on the TDM
el enment, particularly the financial incentive, and would
support an increase in that financial incentive for the north
building to pronote greater uptake of Capital Bikeshare as
a neans to mnimze the site's inpact to the adjacent
transportati on networKk.

Wth that, | will pause, and happy to answer any
questi ons.

CHAI RMAN HOCD: | want to thank both M. Lawson
and M. Rogers.

Any fol | ow up questi ons or coments? Conmm ssi oner
Shapi ro.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you, M. Chair.

A question for M. Rogers. ["m just curious.
When we tal k about anenities related to shared nobility, it's
al ways around Capi tal Bi keshare, and I' mjust wonderi ng where
the -- where or if there are conversations around other
shared nobility uses? And, you know, what is there to ask
for related to scooters or, you know, the other electric
bi cycles, et cetera, et cetera. " m just kind of curious
about that and whet her that conversati on happens and is there
sone flexibility there.

MR, ROCGERS: Sure. That's a good question. DDOT

woul d certainly be supportive of neasures that pronote ot her
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nodes of mcronobility. At this point, sone of the value
that conmes with Capital Bi keshare nenbership or station is
that it is a real tangible thing. It is supported by the
governnent, and the likelihood that it is going to be around
cone tinme for a certificate of occupancy is higher.

Some of the challenges with the newer nodes is
that they are new and their future is unknown, although
certainly there is hope that options wll continue to renain.

We have di scussed sone neans of support for other
m cronobility devices, which it occurs tonein arecent case
there was a recommendation fromthis -- fromthe Conmm ssion
to install electrical plugs in the bike roomas a neans to
electrify the bike roomand provide that flexibility for the
future. DDOT, unfortunately, omtted that inthis particular
TDM plan, but we would be supportive of adding sonething
al ong those lines as well.

And then, related to this specific case, we did
di scuss the potential toidentify |locations for mcronobility
parking within the plaza or other areas in the adjacent
public space. The applicant | think considered that, but
ultimately is not proposing it.

However, we would continue to be supportive of
t hi nki ng al ong those lines, just so that there could be sone
tam ng perhaps of sone of the parking issues that are rel ated

to mcronobility devices, particularly ones that are not
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docked that can be parked wherever the trip ends.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you. |'d be curious
as, you know, nore and nore with your reports, to provide us
nore and nore i nformati on about that and t hose options. And,
you know, it is so fast-changi ng, but perhaps the opportunity
Is to give the devel opers sort of a nenu of options around,
as you say, mcronobility.

And, you know, is there -- is it about a certain
| evel of contribution that coul d be spread across any of the
different kinds of uses? | guess -- | get cabbing is a
little different because there is this infrastructure
commtnment that is nade, and that's a bit different.

But thank you for the answer. | appreciate it.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Can | ask the applicant, are
you willing to put sone bi ke charge -- or outlets in the bike
storage area for people who have el ectric bi kes? Because |'m
glad that M. Rogers brought that up again because it only
started comng up recently. And it seens |like it's a pretty
straightforward, easy thing to do, and it doesn't take a | ot
of power.

MR, MEDER: That would be sonething we would
consider. That's not sonething that | was previously aware
of, but we can certainly consider it.

COMM SSI ONER  MVAY: Yeah. W didn't even start

tal ki ng about this until, you know, a nonth ago or sonet hi ng
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i ke that. But it's -- it seenms |like a no-brainer. | f
you're going to put in that nunber of bike racks, and, you
know, so nmany of the bikes on the road today are e-bi kes, and
It's just going to keep getting to be nore and nore and nore.

MR. MEDER:  Yeah.

COW SSI ONER MAY: | f you could kill sone of those
LED lights that M. Turnbull doesn't |like, you'd be able to
power this, no problem

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Any ot her questions or conments?
You know what? | just thought about sonething. Sonetines
you have to seize the nonent.

M. Rogers, are bicycles required to obey the
traffic laws like the stop signs and the red lights? [|'m
j ust curi ous.

MR. ROCGERS:. Yes, they are.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Okay. | was just wondering. So
"Il remnd all of those that fly by ne on a red |ight that
they are supposed to go by the traffic |l aws. Ckay.

Al right. Any ot her questions or coments up
her e?

Does the applicant have any questions of either
Ofice of Planning or -- Ofice of Planning or DDOTI?

MR UTZ: W do not.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. All right. Let's goto the

ANC s report, and | had it up. Let nme do what | have up
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right now. Let nme go to other governnent agencies, and |
think, Ofice of Planning, | appreciate what they did in
their report.

They nentioned how -- and the responses were in
Exhibit 20, | believe, of the applicant's submttal. But it
tal ks about how they did an interagency neeting on the 24th
of 2019 of OGCctober. Several agencies were in attendance,
including D.C. Water, DOEE, DHCD, and DPR And those
comments were provided to the applicant and he responded.
The applicant has responded in Exhibit 20.

Now [ et nme go to the ANC. Anything else? And we
do have the DDOT and OP report. Let nme go to the ANC s
report. Yeah, it's further up. | just had it. Here it is.
It's Exhibit 11.

It goes on to, on June 11, 2019, with seven out
of seven Conm ssioners, the ANC 5D voted unani nously seven
to zero to support this application and submt the letter of
support. Hats off to Chairman Lee for -- he's got all seven
vot es.

And they also go on to say that Gabl es and EDENS,
our devel opnent team has denonstrated the dedication to
| nproving the Union Market district, and the ANC 5D believe
that this building will continue to build on the investnent
In the community.

The ANC urges the Zoning Conm ssion, pursuant to
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District of Colunbia Code 1-309.10, to accord great weight

to -- and advice -- to this advice and approve the PUD
application.

Al right. Do we have anyone who is here who
would i ke to testify in support? Anyone who would like to
testify in opposition? And anyone who i s undecl ared?

Ms. Schellin, you need to see ne? Ckay.

Al right. So, M. Uz, do you have any rebuttal ?
If not, we'll take your rebuttal and closing all at the sane
time.

MR UTZ: Yeah. But | think that's -- are you
ready now for the close?

CHAI RVAN  HOQOD: Ckay. You don't have any
rebuttal.

MR, UTZ: No rebuttal. | think we have a |ist of
itenms that we're going to imediately start working on
getting into the record, and | think we have a handl e on what
t hose area.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So you can do your cl ose.

MR UTZ: Thank you. Well, thank you very nuch
for taking tonight with us and all your tinme and care in
reviewi ng the application. Thank you to the agencies as
wel | .

As | stated at the beginning of tonight's

presentation, the thenes of this project are really
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| nportant. You know, this is about sinplification of the
prior approval of the first stage. This is about actually
maki ng sonet hi ng happen, expediting the delivery of the north
building, and it's also about enhancing the benefits and
aneni ties package that was previously approved.

This team has been working hard to do that exact
t hi ng, you know, take a robust package that was approved in
2015 and even add to it yet. And we think there is a |ot
t here. We'll continue to take a look at it based on our
di scussion tonight, but, you know, we think that we're
pushing it in areally positive direction fromwhere it was
approved before.

W also think that it satisfies all of the
requi renents for Stage 2. It's in line wwth the Stage 1
approval for the building, and there are no nodifications
requested fromthat approval, which we think is inportant.

W think it's a big step forward for the Union
Mar ket district itself, and the teamis eager to deliver it.

So when you see fit, we would love to request an approval

when ready.

Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: M. Utz, that cl ose was very good.
You really did good for your client. | want you to know
t hat .

MR UTZ: Thank you.
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CHAI RVAN HOOD: 1'mgoing to say that in front of
hi m

MR UTZ: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  You real ly convinced ne.

Al right. Any followup questions or comments
up here?

Before we go, do the scheduling, and |ook at
things that we need, | just want to say that | was | ust
i nformed that M. Rogers, who has nmade a difference -- that
makes a difference to the reports that we get -- | understand
IS going to bigger things. I'"'m not going to say better
because DDOT was good. | just told your director the other

day what a great job you all did.

So we thank you for everything you' ve done. W
t hank you for your service. W really appreciate all of the
I nvol ved reports. You' ve done an excellent job.

So we wish you well, and I'msure we'll| probably
see you sonmewhere down the line. So, congratul ations.

Do you want to say anything, any cl osing remarks?

MR ROCERS: No rebuttal. No cl osi ng. No. I
just wanted to say thank you to the Conmm ssion and Chai r man
Hood for, you know, what has been a wonderful al nost seven
years of experience being up on this dais, and it has been
exciting to be so close to sone real -- sone real swings in

devel opnent, a lot of focus on -- outside of the
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transportation world, affordable housing, and the role that
devel opnent can have in inproving the transportation
I nfrastructure.

|'ve seen a | ot of changes, a | ot of shifts. The
conversations that we've had have really dramatical | y changed
over the last seven years, and | think we're, together,
maki ng a | ot of progress to nake the District a better place
for everyone.

So it has been a pleasure, and you nmay continue
to see ne in aslightly different role in the future.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  You w || continue to nake i npacts
| i ke you' ve done here, and |' msure you' re going to conti nue.
So best to you in your future endeavors.

MR. ROGERS: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  All right. Ms. Schellin? |I'm
sorry. Do you want to give us sone scheduling or --

M5. SCHELLIN:. Sure. So | think that based on the
fact that the Decenber neeting is coming up in, like, two
weeks, that we need to shoot for the January neeting. And
our first neeting is the 13th of January. Does anybody know
when the ANC actually neets again? Do you know?

CHAIRVAN HOOD: |'msorry. \What was the date?

MS. SCHELLIN: When the ANC m ght neet again?

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: They probably won't neet again

unti| Decenber.
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MS5. SCHELLIN:. Ckay. So then how nuch tine do you

thi nk you guys need to provide your -- everything that was
stated this evening, considering the holidays? This is only
a one-vote case.

MR UTZ: So we think three weeks.

M5. SCHELLIN.  Three weeks?

MR UTZ: Yes.

MS. SCHELLI N: Ckay. So that puts us at, one,
two, three, Decenber 9th, 3:00 p.m And then one week for
the ANC. WII you contact the ANC?

MR UTZ: Decenber 9th is two weeks away.

M5. SCHELLIN: [|I'msorry. Oh, yeah. Today is the
25th. One, two, three. Decenber 16th. "' msorry.

MR UTZ: Yeah.

MS. SCHELLIN: Decenber 16th, and that woul d nake
It Decenber 23rd for the ANC If they have an issue wth
that date, you can just have them contact ne.

And then, we will put this on for January 13th.
And if we could have draft findings of fact, concl usions of
|l aw, by -- how about Decenber 31st? Does that give you
enough tinme? Ckay.

MR, UTZ: Sure.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: So | want to note three nore
things down that we need, and then | wll follow back up

W can clarify the benefits and anenities and proposed
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conditions through the PUD proffer process at -- we need to
do that.

We al so need to have the proposed conditions to
I nplement the mtigations with its list of proffers and
condi ti ons.

And | have one nore. W need the design
flexibility conditions for the Conm ssion's consideration
wth this list of final proffers and the draft conditions
al so.

So those three. And if you have any additi onal
gquestions or you're unsure, you mght want to check with M.
Ritting. Okay?

MR UTZ: Cot it.

MS. SCHELLI N: So, Jake, are you asking themto
go through the proffers and conditions process starting
today? So the first one would be due in seven days?

MR RITTI NG Yes. That was ny hope. I
understand that there are sone things that m ght change, and
I f you need nore tine, I'"'mwilling to work with you and gi ve
you that, if you need it. But, vyes, | think the
under st andi ng shoul d be followthe rules for now, and if you
need nore tine, ask ne about it.

MR UTZ: Sur e. Yeah, we're happy to do it.
Thanks.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Are we cl ear on the dates?
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MS. SCHELLI N: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: What was the dates again? |'m
sorry.

MS. SCHELLI N: So the applicant is going to
provide the additional requests stated this evening by 3:00
p.m on 12/16. They are going to work with the ANC so that
they know that they need to respond to those docunents by
12/ 23.

If the Ofice of Planning and DDOT want to
respond, they also have 'til 12/23. Draft findings and fact
and conclusions of law by 3:00 p.m on 12/31. And we'll put
this on for January 13th, and they will also, even though
it's only a one vote, go through the proffering and
condi tions process starting next week, seven days fromt oday.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Anything el se?

All right. I'mgoing to read -- | haven't read
this closing statenent in years, but | see it and |'m goi ng
toread it. I'mgoing to start doing this.

kay. We wish to thank you for the testinony and
assistance in this hearing. The record in this case is
cl osed, except for the information specifically requested by
the Comm ssion, which nust be filed as indicated by the
Secretary.

The Comm ssion will nmake a decision in this case

at one of its regular nonthly neetings. Foll om ng the
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closing of the record, if any individual is interested in

foll ow ng the case further, please contact staff to determ ne

whet her this case is on the agenda for a particul ar neeting.
I now declare this hearing adjourned.
(Whereupon, at 8:15 p.m, the above-entitled

matter went off the record.)
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